PARKS CONSOLIDATION

The Milwaukee County Park Commission was organized under State law in 1907 and initial site acquisitions commenced in 1910 when land for Grant and Jacobus Parks was acquired.

The City of Milwaukee Board of Park Commissioners was created in 1889, although the first public parkland in the city was donated in 1835 (Zeidler Union Square).

Over the years the city system grew more rapidly in number of sites than the county’s, however, by the early 1930’s it had expanded further than the city’s ability to fund adequate maintenance.  This shortage of funds was especially apparent when he federal work relief projects were started.  The City Park Board could not take full advantage of the programs, as it did not have the funds required to purchase necessary materials.

In January of 1934 both the City of Milwaukee Common Council and the Milwaukee County Board each authorized the appointment of fifteen-member citizen committees to study potential consolidation.  These committees met both jointly and independently over a period of ten months.  In October of 1934 the County Board was given a report of their findings. The report found that there was considerable duplication in functions, services and equipment in most instances.  However, the City Forestry Department had specialized equipment which the County lacked and the County Park Commission had landscape architects on staff which was a deficiency at the City.

In December of 1934, the Milwaukee County Board adopted a resolution inviting various municipalities to transfer ownership of parks to the County.  After much discussion and many meetings to address the multitude of concerns which were raised, the City of Milwaukee put the issue to a referendum in April of 1936.  The voters by about a 3 to 1 margin overwhelmingly favored the matter of consolidation.

Ultimately, on November 19, 1936 the Milwaukee County Board acted to accept the deeds to the city lands as well as personnel and equipment involved in park operations. The effective date of the consolidation was January 1, 1937.

At the time of consolidation the County had 23 parks and parkways totaling 3,387.6 acres including

five 18-hole golf courses, three swimming pools, and three beaches.  The City of Milwaukee had 36 sites totaling 1, 497.6 acres including a conservatory, zoo, five beaches, one swimming pool and a nursery.

The consolidation movement also saw the following transferred to County ownership by other municipalities:

· Sheridan Park by the City of Cuday
   -
1931

· Holler Park by the Town of Lake
   -
1936

· Hoyt Park by the City of Wauwatosa   -
1937

· Pulaski Park (Cudahy) by City of Cudahy -
1937

· Rawson Park by City of Milwaukee     -
1937
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